I[N THE SUPREME COURT OF JUDICATURE OF JAMAICA

16 COMMCOHR LAW §§
SULT NO. C.L. P 041 OF 1986
BETHEEN WiNSTON PUSEY PLAINTIFF
A N D PUMPS & IKRIGATION LIMITED 15T DEFENDAHT
LA B D JAMATICA PUBLIC SERIVCE LIMITED 2ND DEFENDAWT
A N O GENERAL UTILITY SERVICE LIMITED 3ED DEFENWDANT
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Dennis Morrison & Lynden Wellesley for the Plaintiff.

vennis Goffe & Norman ijavis for lst Defendant instructed by Myers Fletcher & Gordoo.

-

Cilifton Daley & Carol Vassell for the 2nd Defendzant instructed by Daley Walker &
Lee~Hing.

3rd Defendant, not appearing unrepresentad.
Heard: 11/5/92, 13/5/92, 14/5/92, 15/5/92, 20/10/92

14/4/93, 15/4/93, 19/4/93. 22/4/93, 26/4/93,
B 27/4/93 and July 16, 1553,

Judgment

BECEKORD .J.

This is an action for negligence and breach of Statutory Duty arising out of
injuries received by the piaintiff, an employee of the first defendant company
wiich was contracted to the second defendant to remove electric power lines from
its utilityrpoles in the parish of St. Elizabeth., Iz the zct of performing his
“uties the plaintiff cawe into contact with high powerec lines. He received szrious
z2lectrical burns on several areas of his body which led to his right hanéd being
amputated below the elbow. The plaintiff also alleged that his employers, ths first
defendant, failed to provide a safe place of work and failed to take proper and
effective precautions to prevent equipnent from becoming being charged when perscms
worked therecn.

As against the second defendant, the plaintiff also zlleged that this defeniant
48 undertakers for the supply of electricity failed to epsure the safety of their
sub~contractors from personal icjury.

In his opening of the plaintiff’s case Mr. Morrison informed the court that
the action against the third defendant was not being persued and he was discontiouing

SAMe .
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The Plaintiff®s Case

The Jamaica Public Service Company the second defendant, is the scle supplicz
of electricity throughout Jamaica. In August, 1984, they contracted with the
first.defendant, Pumps & Irrigation Limited, for the “comstruction of the Spur Tree
tagotty 69 KV Transmission Line and the associatad Primary aad Secondary Distribu-~
tion Underbuilds, also the retirement of the .exigting 65 KV line and its
asscciated Prmiary and Secondary Underbuilds.™

Comsequent on this award the work ccmmenced early 1985 revamping the lines
from Spur Tree sub-station and the Magotty Power Statica in St. Elizabeth, that is,
taking out the cld lines and replacing them with taller pcles and bigger wires.
The plaintiff, a grade ome electriciam employed to the first defendant, wasa part
of the crew.

By the fateful day. 23rd October, 1985, the work hag proceeded uwnevenitfully
to the District of Pak. The particular work the plaintiff was engaged in on thet
day was to remove electirical wires., This involved him climbing on the pcles.
Before doing so he had been assured by his supervisor Mr. Miller znd the Jamaics
Public Service persomnel that the appropriate switches had been done, that is.
that the lines had been cpened sc that no éurrent was passing through and that it
was safe for the crew t2 go to work om both sides of the Foad. The crew applied
the short and ground, as a further precautionary measure to emsure for themselves
that the lines were safc.

The plaintiff first did some work on a new post on one side of the rocad and
returned to the ground. His supervisor thep instructed him to BEc on an old pole;
on the other side of the road and cut down three ilegs of wires. With the assigi-
ance of his belt and hand line he climbed the post. A co-worker on the ground
passed up to him a cutter to be used by him to cut the wires. He held the cutter
in both hands, stretched the cutter towards the wire and then there was "hig
¢xplosion.” He was knocked uncomscious.

The following day he recovered couscicusness in the Mandeville Hospital.

He had pains all over his body. His hands, legs; chest were burnt. The fingers

“E his right hand were "hooked up," were not making any form of movement. When
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he looked at himself he was frightened. Despite efforts by the doctors to save

his hand, they had to amputate the zight hand on the 15th November, 1985. He was

2z right handed person. His operation was done by Dr. Frazer. He also saw professor
&olding and Dr. Rose.

Since the incident he has suffered severe loss of amenities of life. He cen
10 longer play dominces. cricket, shuffle cards., tie shoe laces, bathe himself
properly, wash clothes or cock for himself. He camnot do electrical work any muTe.
He tried to mitigate his Ioss ~ got work twice - the first as a delivery man lasted
for ome month. He could not change tyres on the vzhicle and could not contimue the
job. The other job as z janitor lasted for two months. He had to quit tois alsc
as some of his duties regaire the use of both hands. Attempts to get other jobs
were without sucecess.

He was discharged from the bospital on the 4th of February, 1986, and had %o
bire a maid to take care cf his domestic chores -~ He paid her $100.00 per week
until l4th November, 1957 when he migrated to United States of America. Although
he lived with his mother he had to employ a helper to assist him. He paid her
US$200.00 per week from ‘then up untii when he left the United States of Americz
vn the 30th of April, 1992 to attend court as 2 witness im this case.

His salary at the time of the accident was $400.00 per fortnight after
statutory deductions. He received his salary from the first defendant uwp to Apzril
i566. He has received no salary since then. His family bought him 2 prosthesis
in the United States of America in 1986 for US$3000.00. A linesman would now earns
$1500.00 to $2009.00 per week. He would mow be at least 2 supervisor earning cver
$3C00.00 per week.

The loss of his hand drew the attention of others -~ This made him feel
cabarassed. His wiwle life system has changed. 3Host of the time he puts the hand in
his pocket to avoid attention. The scars from the buims are still visible. #When
the weather gets hot the scars from the burns iteh -- He has to use lotion or
powder to soothe then.

Some five to siz weeks before the incident the lime which he was going &o
work on was cut off some miles down. It was an old line -~ No current was in it

new lines had been put in to take its place.
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The plaintiff admitted he was nmot a licensed electrician. There were
facilities in New Jersey. United States of America. for re-traiming physically
handicapped people. He had gone there but he did not get any traiming. He
received $7,50C.00 in Jameica frow the National Insuraznce Scheme. The cutter he
used was ﬁot insulated. He denied that the work scheduled for that day was for
one side of the road only.

Rupert Miller an electrician, testified for plaintiff. He was employed i
the first defendant up tc 1985 and was the plaintiff’s supervisor on this project.
ihe 23rd of October 1985, his crew was working in the Pzk district of St. Elizabeth.
After discussion with Mr. Boswell, the engineer for the second defendant, and
carrying out the usual routine to ensure that it was safe to work,; he was proviied
with a work permit which he signed, assigning him to work in that area for the “zy.
His job for that day was planting poles, dressing poles, straighting wires, cutting
cut 01d wires and gemeral clearing of wires on both sides of the road. After do-
ing some work on the nmew line after lunch he told ths plaintiff, "since we have
scme time lets go and cut down some old wires — that is, the old abandoned 6% XY
line that was there." They had worked on one side scme Five weeks before and n%
the other end two ~ three days ago. It was sbout two miles of wires which had
been abandoned in that arez ~ no current in the line.

The plaintiff on his instructions climbed the pole and the cutter was passed
up t¢ him, He cut one wire znd then poesitioned himself to cut a second line.

"He put up the cutter ts cut the other one ancd this bzall of fire just came dowmn --
tie started to blaze, shoes, clothes everything - he slumped in his belt.” He
sent up one of his men who brought down the plzintiff and he was sent off to
hospital.

"After they left for hospital I decided to track the lime. I walked in
Stme pastures following the line until I saw ome leg of the old 69 KV was out of
the clamp and was resting on the urnderbuild. The underbuild was still alive.

The line was opened; One of my men went and took up back the slack wire and tied
it to the top of the clamp from which it was pulled cut. This was between 2 -- 3
miles away from the accident.™ He regarded the plaintiff as a good and competent

workman and he would surely be a foreman if he was still with the first defendant.
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& foreman now earns $20U00.0U per week.

The work that the plaintiff was engaged in was a fairly day to day roumtins
for the electricians ~ the job was in progress for 6 - 8 months and similar pro-
cedures were adopted on this day as in the past. The short and ground had been
wiplied 2s an extra proceuticn., He had access to the lines from 8z.m. to 5p.m.

He wes the supervisor znd woo present some 5 -~ 6 weeks Sofore when they did work

“2 the limes which was out of the clamp. Before leoving the area the 6% KV wir-
wer properly in its clamp -~ there was tensicm in th: wire. One indication that the
clump on the line was working was that the line was cant - had tensiocn.

He was trained in Englend as an clectriciin zmnd worked =1l over that countzry
wnd was exposed to all sorts of electrical work ther. For eleven years.

Under cross—examiz:ticn by ccunsel for the second defendant, Mr. Miller
s:id that an ocutage was involved that day and they were working within the oraon
i the outage. The first defendant was an independanc ccatracicr and he was
responsible for the safity of work and workmen. The conductor that fell cut oF tho
cizmp was an old wire thet would have been removed whensver he got clearance to do
7. He haud left the wires in good condition mnd the ends were properly clamped.
ww ¢ld not check the elamyp paysicaily. He agreaed thel the most impertant werk oo
aze to dothat caywas to install s mobile sub-staticn. B> did not use an insulniocd
cutizr as they do mot work ca live lines, he had dome s milar up grading work f.y
the Jjomaica Public Service on the norchecast which losted For eighteen mounths.

Dr. Christopher Risz, consultant corthoneadic surgecn at the University
Hoespital of the West Indics exsmined the plaintiff oa th: &th May, 1992. He i-uand
Aypopigmented areas situctfed im the right leg meusuring 4 X Sem. and on the Lofs
i1y 5 X lJem. There were 2lso large areas of hyprpigmentation alomg the anteri r
aspect of the chest. These werc as & resuvit of elaocirical burns., He had &

Duiow elbow amputation zt the level of the mid right foresrm which repraesented o
U4 loss of the upper sxtremity which was equivalent to o 58% of the whoie PEYS IR,
Irtal disability could be in the reiom of cvout 0% toking into accoun: the
;—-ssibility of cancer of th: skin. The forearm had beon Fitted with a prosthesis
which was designed to ensbic the user to assist in the helding and 1ifting of

relatively heavy objects — without the prosthesis he weuld have a useless right
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upper limb. It takes 15 -~ 20 years for symptoms of malignant degeneration to appzar.

(On the applicaticn of Mr. Morrison for the plaintiff, some amendments were
made to the particulars in the statement of claim).

The plaintiff was recailed for further cross—examination on-the question of
niring belper abroad. The helper came on normal working days and zlso a few
Szaturdays and Sundays and she prepared his breakfast, lunch and dinner. She mzde
bis bed and kept the home clean. He lived in an apariment with his mother aac
adult sister and brother whc all go out to work. The helper cooks dinmser for thon
311, She started working with him from January 1983 aad had worked for him
continuously since then st the rate of US$200.00 per week. His mother paid the
aciper and with the assistance of his sister and brother they took care of the
nousehold bilis.

This was the end of the plaintifffs case.

e On the application of Mr. Goffe the defemce »f the first defendant was amoended
oy imserting in paragraph 8, the following:—
FFailure to comply with Regulaticns.3 and 8 of the Electrical Lighting
Eayulation 1922.7

The hearing was thean adjcurned to give the second defendant an opportunity
te amend its defence. if necessary.

On the resumption, Hr. Coffe ammounced that he would not be calling any

witnesses for the first defendant.

Second Defendant's Case

Mr. Daley then cpenel the case for the second defendant. The first witaess
was kr. Huntley Higgins, Director of Engimeeriny at the Jamaica Public Service.
e knew of the company Pumps & Irrigation Limited and that it was an approved
Jamaica Public Service coutractor in the categeries of sub~station and transamission
iines and distribution lines. The Jamaica Fublic Service had rules and regulzticns
Ly which the coatractors zre bound. A contract was ¢ntered intc by the Jamaiea
Fuslic Service with the first defendant regarding the distributicn of electricity.
ce tendered a2 copy of the contract which was admitted in wvidence it spelt out

the obligations of the parties.

Mr. Reville McFarlanc; the Safety and Envirommental Control Engineer at
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samaica Public Service Company said he was familicr wirh regulation § of ths
Zicctrical 'Ligo€ing Regulstion 1922, which required :hat when wires were rebircd
they shouid be taken down. This would reduce the risk of inadverteni contacl..
The Jameica Public Servien provided 2 General Safety Procedures and Safety Policy
#inpual which related to cnyone working with Jamaics Public Service and includ.ad
controctors. A copy wzs adniticd im evidence.

Where 2 request is modc Dy the contractor it is -n apreecment between Jomolic
Public Service and the cauti&ctcr 38 tu when remcval is o be done; bur the
“Lidgation in the regulatiosn is cast on the Jameies Public Service and mot the
ohniractor.  Ouce the purmit £o work hed beem issucd the comtrol of the section
zovered by the permit puss.d from Jamasies Publie Scxvics to the contractor. Fhow
~ rozalc to work is given the contractor is only voguired o do what is on the
vermit and no more.

kr. Veolney Boswell. # supervisor at the Jameies Public Service Construc ion

Zepartment was the engincer directed by Jemmica Public Sorvies to be in chorge ~f

[
o
[P

project which starced in 1384, It was z standard Practice that on the day
elfure an ocutage he woeil discuss with the contractor the activities for the daoy of
the cutage. In keepisy with this practice himself cnd kr. Miller, on the uay He-
Zere this incident, discussed plans for the following day. In order o kcep the
¢wn of Black River supplicd that day with electricity they had ko dimstall & =mobilc
sub-staticn at the district ~f Tombstone, befcre the saiage was cffected. Afiox
weking the necessary arreogemsnt for the outage in the syrez of the aceident. he
issued his permit tu work uo Hr. Miller after bein: assured by his systems conircl
that the lines in the zres had Leen de-cnergised ond issisted and that it was enfe
ror the workmen for the lisus to commence working. The -dded precauticn of the
short and ground was also applied. Ho specific work is sleted i a work permii.

It ds dissued for the sectiom of the lime to b= de~eneriset. A general deseriptiop
~f the work to be dome is given on the permit b work. Er. Miller did have tha

3ob of removing transformers that day but had no zuthozrity to go on pule and ramsoved
deac wires. In this area the 01d lines were on the left side of the road Zoing
Lowsras Black River whiie the new lines were on the vight. Mr. Miller was suppoiscd

1

£ be working om the ripht side of the roud relocsting some transformers from -3
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L0 new poles. The accident occured on the left sice of the read where the old
lines were. The work that ir., Miller was engaged in would not require him goin;
over on the left side.

Mr. Boswell was not present when the plaintiff was injured but spoke to
Mr. Miller about it afterwards. Mr. Miller teld him that he had completed what ha
was instructed to do and had some time left sc he decided that he would instruck
his woriman to go on the pcolzs to retire some old wires using a cutter. The
plointiff was in the process of cutting the wire when there was an arching and the
plaintiff bLecame liwmp on the pole. He was taken down and sent off to hospital.

55 cne is permitted to climb a Jamaica Public Serviee fole without permission freo
Jamajca Public Service and he had given no permission for anyone to climb that
particular peole. The entirc transmission lines were already taken out of service
irom sometime before Lut the distribution lines were caly taken cut to facilitats
the work being dome in the ares.

The day following the accident Mr. Boswell said he found cut how the line
vecame energised. He alom. wirh others did a patrol along the line and discovered
“that the old 69 KV linz had somehow sagged to the extent that it actually czme
into contact with the 24 KV underbuild which, at the time of the accident, was
energised at the point where it came inte contact.®

Mr. Miller had remcvel wires before but the emphasis was on getting the new
lines up - the retirement of the old wires was seccndery. It was not in the scope
of the work for that day that men were #0ing to retire these lines. It was a
vilicy of the Jamaica Public Service mot to use contractors to do any form of liwe
line work.

Or both sides of the road the 24 KV distributi-m. lines in the area were
Zle-enerygised while the 4% KV transmission line was ~hysically disconnected from
the scurces im Magotty and Spur Tree. Some of these had already been removed by
the contractor. Approximately 5 — & weeks before the comtractor had worked oo
the lines where they touched. It was the respomsibility of Jamaica Public Service
to check and determine when lines retired that they hadé been properly and safely
done.

The work done 3 -~ ¢ weeks before had been checked by him and he was satisfied

that it was properly dome. It was the responsibility cf the contractor to see that
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wires remaining were left safely in place. This was the end of the case for the

second defendant.

Submissions

Mr. Daley, on bebalf of the seccond defendant, submitted that the issue
Datween the plaintiff and the second defendant was whather the First defendant*=
ropresentative Hyr. Miller was instructed to work on trazansformers as stated by
rix, Boswell or was the work of removing dead conductors included in the work coverod
by the outage. Mr. Miller told plaintiff to remove wires "since we have time:”
Caiy inferenmce to be drawm is that this was not plsoned. He referred to the
specification under coatract at paragraph 1.08 wherchy the contractor undertook not
Lo carry out any work on any poles carrying energised lines.

Jn page B2, the contractor took full respomsibility for the safety of all site
cperations.

Page B7, the comtractor o complete work to satisfaction of the Engineer.

Pzt B8, the contractor not to change the methods without the consent of the
cugineer,

Fzze B1O, paragraph 19 - the coptractor to take all racessary precautions for the
safety of employees.

Puge Bll, paragraph 20 the contractor te take full regponsibility for the care of
ihe workers.

Page Bl2, paragraph 21 -- contractor shall be solely lisble for loss or injury
couse by the execution of the work,

While the contractor must comply with the direcrions of the engineer he had
total responsibility for corrying out the work of the contract. If the court fings
that Mr. Boswell had instructed the contractor to remcve dead lines knowing taok
tbore was inherent danger im that conductors may fall znd come into contact with
tirose lines, then these are the only circumstances iz which any liability could
zrise on the part of the Jamzica Public Service. However, this would not relieve
tixe contractor — it was he who had severed wires which fell out of the clamp.

Mr. Daley submitted that a utility company, like the Jamaica Public Servies
is not liable for every injury caused. These undertzkings were operated by licence

under which rules governiang the safety of the public are made. The plaintiff was
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1

<0t given amy permission by the second defendznt te ciimb the pole. As & matter
ol prudence the contractor sheould have adopted additicnsi safety precaution by

using insulated pliers and sloves. The work of retirizng iines was being done n

“tages. The work programmed for chat day was the setzing up of -~ mobile sub=-station

o< the removal of wires. The cause of injury wes nof beceuse line had slipped

“rom the clamp but because the: plaintiff had climbad o prle when not suthorisc. +

It was his submission thet RBegulation 8 of th: El.cirical Lighdng
resutaticons was compiet::1y izrelevant to rhis caseé. Thoers was in fact a PRSI
1T Temoving the wires whicn was formuleted by che first defendant end APPTIviz

=y the second defendant. Even if the court accepted the wvidence of Mr. Milil.r

thit he was entirled to C2XYyY ut whalever work ha

under the comtract, rTha

secause Lhe duiy of the

semiice Public Service 1is =hility would be very momin-l

oy of bis own work was by bis cwn admission un his shoulder and eoatractuzil

nis ds solely responsisie

Hr. Daley submitted £h~r in the Barx®s case 3CCLE 45 - 48785, there was

E

= usiderable more injurics thom in the instant case, I this case the court should

[

i at the pessibility <F thc plaiatiff cbeoinisg wmployment. He ought nof oo
sucieed wader elaim for iong of furure coroings.  The a2icim for belper shouid be
cousiderably reduced - it was wmreasonanie and was only put io to Doximise

LRSS S YIRS

0o behalf of che glaintiff Mr. Morriscno suimitiod thac thers was no oviifonge:

Ll support the SECJﬂd i _ﬂﬁ}ﬁtuunallﬁéatlgﬁ that ths plaiatiff was contrilul Ty

negiizent. There uas nb'alle fation by the flISt defendant of any contrlbutory
ne:i;gence by the plalntlff The plaintiff was therefore entitled to Judgment of
1007 of Jemakes proved.

On the guestion of spocial dame. £E€3 Mr. ¥orriscon submitted that the evideueo
sugnoried the eclzin as mnendid, but was of the view that sipee the foreign helyor
Lic not work exclusively for the plaintiff that a reduction of say 25% would se
sastifiad,

In additiom, it wos cpen ¢+ the court to make an award for future help as
Ye to when the plaintiff sove evidence he had an helper in the Umited States o F

Awmerica. The Plaintiff wes 36 years old when he pove nviqence. Based on thoe

- - 7 = 1 = - a0 - -
salhoricies he suggestad that a muitiplier of 12 would te fair at $200.00 pex
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per week = $10,400.00 per anmum mmltiplied by 12 =zguals $124,800.00. This alssc

should be subject to a deduction of say 25% for the rvesason above.
With regard to the claim for future loss of earpings Mr. Morrison submitizd

hat it was the gemeral level of the plaintiff’s sducation which would determian

i

wvhether in adulthood he would be sble to be re~trained in such a way as to make

him a valuable player in the job markst. In his view ii was unlikely that the

plaintiff by his training to reach further than = foveman who supervises linesmen.

Tne plaintiff had made efforis to find work but with little success. This case

he said was an appropricte ome for award of loss of future earnings. On the

cvidence of the plaintiff and Hr. Miller last vear a supervisor would be paic

$3000.00 per week. This amcunt could be used as 2 propzr basis for the loss of

future earnings. This was equivalent to $156,000.00 per year., Using a awliipiiocr
wE 12, future loss would be §1.872,000.00.

For pain and sufferins snd loss of amenities ¥r. Morrisom referred tThe court
t> Exhibits 1 & 2, which were photographs of the plaintiif after his imjuries -

ioss of 56% of the whole man together with burns.

~ther awardsfound in Mrs. Khens compilation on perscnal injury awards. Im Barr's
drs. knens o

cise Vol. 3 p.S59, $550.8006.00 awarded in 1987 eguivalent now to $2,200,000.00.

o8z of

In Carlton Smith v. Jasper Jomes Vol. 3 p.95 $184.000.00 awarded. Omn cost

liwving index for December 1992 (419.6) this eguivalent to $720,000.00. Tc this 1%

zould be added to cover burns making §$850,000.60 2 reasonable award. Other caszs

ruferred to were Aston Fittin v. Blacks Block Factcry -~Xhans Vol. 3 p.97 (SCCGA

ke Rty
$373.5048.

63/89) sum awarded $85,000.00 ~n December 1992, indez. this eguivalent to

Winston Shaw v. Frankiyn Francis ~Khans Vol 3 p. 83 $125,000.00 awarded %

Hovember 1959. This esuivalent to $410,006.00 on December 1992 index. based <

awazds io the above cases, he asked for am award in the region of $750,000.C0

5500, 000.00 for pain and sufferipg.

Submissions on behsif of the first defendant were mede by Mr. Davis. Oo

the guestion of liebility he detailed factors which were not im issue the finmal
being that the third defendant®s engineer in charge of the project had previousiy
checked and found that the removal had beem dome by the first defemdant to the

gatisfaction of the second defendant.
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What, he asked was the proximate cause of the injury inm this case. He
suebmitted that the effective cause was that the old 69 ZV line came inte contact

with 24 KV and that whoever was respensible for this was the party liable to

the plaintiff. Referemce was made to the case of Westwood & Amcther v. Post Office

{1974) A/C page 1. 1Imn the instant case there was no prohibition - the plaintiff wes

worTking in an area he contracted to work. In assessing the effective cause tho
ccurt sust bear in mind that Jamaica Public Service is the sole distributor having
~ssclute control over 2 dengerous utility -~ a heavy Cuty of care - See Judgment

cof wright J.A, in SCCA Mo 45 & 48/85 - JPS v. Barr and Judgment of Downer J.A. on ths

%yiends v. Fletcher ruliz.

See also Charlesworth on personzl peglipence 7tk Edition a2t p.90%.

Under Regulation 3 of the 1922 Repulatiomns the Jsmaica Puolic Servic

&
g’l
i
1)

ander obligation to take down the old 69 KV lines - Jomaice Public Serviee can’t
cilegate. its statutory cobligetions - See Judgmeni of Kerr J.A. in the Bary case
2t page 17. See alsc pases 37 & 38. Who is responsible for the remaining oid
53 &V lines ¢to remain in safe condition and not 2 scurce of danger? The fack
that the second defendant had checked work of the first defendapt 5 —~ & weeks
befure and found it sztisfactory operates in law to frec the first defemdant of

3iability in relation &o this and conclusive of the Izch that the first defendznt

had left the liue in safe conditiom - See Bucknor v, Ashby (1940) 1KE 321 at 334,

As Far as the facts and the law 0, Mr. Davis submitted that the first
defendant was mot liable. Its work had been passed Dy the second defendant znd
it was entitled to think that its respomsibility wruld cease. Thereafter whose
rusponsibility it was to momitor the lines to see that it was nmot a spurce of
comger? Mr. Boswell said in evidence it was his. He rweferred to Clause 13{2) of
the conditions of contract. There was no evidence of any neglect by the first
cefendant in removing the wires. There was no evidence that if the wire sagged
or slipped out of the clamp it could only be becausc of failure to clemp. There-
irre any finding that it was sc caused would be baszd on eonjecture and speculaticn
and not based on the evideace. In fact it would De contrary to the evidence anc
the legal principles applicaible to the evidence -~ see Repulation 3 of the 1%22

Regulations ~ The onus om the Jamaica Public Service. In the light of the secomnd
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defendant’s failure to plead this and in the light of all factual indications
pointing to a satisfactory job, the Jamaiecaz Public Service ought to be foumd #0o
be the cause of the source of damger occasioned by the 69 KV coming into contact
witk the 24 KV line.
The crux of the second defendant’s defence was that the plaintiff was doing
wirk which was unauthorised at a place where he ought mot to have been - It was
aot the second defendant’s case that the first defendant was pegligent when work
was done 3 - © weeks before some two miles away. Hr. Boswell had said it was his
responsibility to meomniter the old 69 KV lines which werz to be retired.
#r. Davis submittesd that the evidence pointed to the fact that the plaintiff
was authorised to be in the area‘where he was working - Ee was no trepasser.
based on Mr, HMiller's evidence the plaintiff was asuthorised to do the work that
wes being done. Tnder specification of eontract clause 1.07 the contractotr had
o discretion to arrange the order of the works.

The Jamaica Public Service was under a2 duty tc ensure that lines did mot
come into contact with each other. . idealing with witra hzzardous activity oanc &
cannot divest ome's self of liability by delegating ones respomsibility to a

contracter See Homeywell v. Stein & Larkling Bros (1934) KB 191.

The permit to work awmounted to a warramty that the lines were dead and both

parties regarded that this was an area that was safe.
There was nothing from the evidence jn the plaintiff’s case to support his allepa~
tions that first defendant made place of work unsafe.

The Factories Regulation did not apply therefore this claim was misconstrusd.
Fo adverse inferemce can be drawn from the fact that first defendant gave o
syvidence,

Mr. Davis submitted that clause under the Res lpsa Loguitur principle only
applied when the defendant hod the res under his exciusive control. See Esscn v.

Loodem & WE Railway Co. {1944) 2 AR 425. The control of the wires rested solely

wick the second defendant Jamaieca Public Service.

On the question of damages Mr. Davis said that the sun suggested for pain
and suffering was not unreascnable. He found that under the elaim for future
nelp the multiplier of 12 was too high and suggested a figure of 10. As helper
anpaged in workinmg for entire household there should be a reduction of 50% imstead

of 25% as suggested by Mx. Morrison. On the elaim for loss of future earmings the
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appropriate multiplicand should be in the range of $2000 ~ $2500. not $3000
suggested by Mr. Morriscn. If $2250 is used this would attract income tax of
1/3. However on plaintifi’s evideﬁce, there is a real prospect of trainmiog and
alternative employment in the United States of America Whicﬁ had resources and
commitment to handicap pecple and he was lined up for that training, Appropriate
downward adjustment should therefore be made to the multiplietr and suggested 3.
Thz figure should then read $2250 X 52 = 3117.,000.00. This reduced by $14,300.00
for tax free allowance — balzmce $102,500.00 ~ Beduct 1/3 for tax ($34,166.00)
~ balance $68,334.00 X 5 = $341,670.00.

in reply., Mr. Daley submitted that neither Rylani v. Fletcher nur absciute
linbility was pleaded in the case and these rules cught not to be applied. The
second defendant was coperstiang under a licence. The allsmation of negligence

azié breach of statutory duty have not been founded in this case.

Findings
The following are not in - dispute-

“hat the plaintiff was emploved as an electrician with the first defendant which

nad a contract with the second defendant to, imter zlia, revamp old electrical

[

ines between Spur Tree and Hagotty and replace them with new lines;

That in accordance with a settled and agreed course of conduct the first
defendant had applied for and granted an ‘cutzge’ by the second defendant for tho
area where work was being done om the date of this accident;

That the cutage jzrapted for that area on that day was in respect of the Z4
KV distribution lines;
That some 5 ~ 6 weeks prior to the accident the cid 69 KV tramsmission lines

had been isolated and partiaily retired, the remaining portiom to be retired ax

41}

cme convenient time agreed by the partiess
That before the plaintiff started working that Jay he had been assured by
both his supervisor and the Jamaica Public Service enzineer that the area was safe
o work.
That the plaintiff received his injuries within the area for which the out-
axe was granted;

That the first defendant applying the same procedure and applying similax
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raiety measures had removed and replaced several miles of wires in keeping within

The terms of its contract.

what specific work the first defemdant had to do that day,

There w2s no agreement in court between the first 2nd second defendant as to

The ‘permit tc work®

form issued by second defencdant to the first Jdefendant was not produced to the

court and no saztisfaciory reason given for its non-production. The first defenient

SV . Y

maintained that once it had been given am outage for am area it was free to carry

out whatever work was requirec under the contract within that specified zrea. Tha

zozond defepdant demied
srmtitled to do what was

Tirst defendant claimed

e

w2 plaintiff was injured.

7ot in the permit to work.

thdt this was so and said the first defendant was oniy

agreed upon which was set cut in the permit to work. Ths

z

it was obliged under the contract to remove the line that
w2 isolated within the area where there was the cutzge and was so engaged whon
The second defendant said there was nc agreement for

nartienlar pole to be climbed omn that day to remove wires and that this was

It is noted that when the pleadings were closed that there was no allegarica

“hat the plaintiff had beem contributory negligent. It was mot until the

T

brd started that an application was made by the second defendant to amend

defence alleging negpligence on the part of the plaintiff,

trial

is

The second defendant claims that the prozimate cause of the plaintiff's

injury was because he ciimbod 2 pole when he had no suthority to do so. The firs:

cefendant claims that the cld retired 69 XV wires came in contact with the live

24 XV wires and whoever was responsible for this was the party liable.

wtation was just to enzble the

1 first defendant, to carry cut its obligations under the contract.

without electricity for the eatire day.

The cutage was not pranted that day in order to installa mobile sub-station.

‘= elear f~om the evidence that the outage was granted to emable the contractor,

The sub-—
town of Black River to be supplied with electricity

"™%e the first defendant did its job. Otherwise Black River would have been

The first defendant’s main duty under its

ecntract was to remove existing transmission and distribution lines and replacs

e

"2, In so doimg other usexrs of electriecity would naturally be affected.

e~

ort had to be made to avoid inconvenience to cther arsas.

Evary
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The Jamaica Public Service, is the sole distributor of electricity - it
operates under a licence -~ it owes a common duty of care to emsure safety of the
public in general and a very high duty of care to its employees includiﬁg iﬁdepeﬂdent
contractors working on iis system. It was Mr. Boswell’s éﬁidence that at the end
0f each day it was his éutyltv check on the werk dO#é by tﬁé fitét defendaiit and

to ensure that it was propefly done. In the area Wﬁete thé wire had slipped from

the clamp he was present =me 5 = 6 weeks before and $aﬁ workman of the first defendant

romoved sections of the old abandoned 69 RV wires ieaving another section to be
vemoved suﬂsequently. He was present énd saw the workman pit the remaining section
in ciamps~and he was satisfied ﬁhat it was properly done.

It was the evidence of the plaintiff, the fiﬁst Zefendant and the second
Zzfencant that everything was donme that ought to have Leen done to emsure that the
outage area was safe to work. The o0ld 69 KV lines wore abandoned and disconnectal
from the system and were Leing removed in stages; the 24 KV limes had leen temporazily
de-cnerzised that morming within the area of the cutage; the short and groundd had
been applied and systens conttol had given the go aliend that it was safe for the
workmen to proceed on their assignment. Mr. Boswell himself admitted thet it was
uanecessary for a workman iz those circumstances ﬁc use nubber or insulatéd clippers.
Mr. Roswell himself admitted that in issuing his “permit to work," forms the work
to be dome was not specifically set out but only in ueneral terms. Mr. Bosweli
himself admitted that it was the Jamaica Public Survice responsibility to monitor
iis lines to ensure that it was not a socurce of dapger. Although Jamaica Public
Service liabiiity is not an absolute one, when a workmsn who is not a trespasser
and who is mot negligent ;=ts injured at the work piscce in the manner that the

plaintiff was injured who is to be blamed? See Westwood & Another v, Post Office

(1974) A/C p.1.

The plaintiff must prove his case on a balapce of preobabilities. His
witness Mr, ¥iller after the accident traced the lincs some 2 ~ 3 miles away 2nd
discovered that ‘ome leg® of the old retired 69 KV linc which his team had worked
cn 5 ~ & weeks before bad slipped from the clamp and was touching the live 24 ¥
lines below causing the old abandoned 69 KV line to De emergised. This line accord-
ing to the evidence of the plaintiff, Mr. Miller and ¥Mr. Boswell had been partizily

retired, de-energised and teken out of service and cmly waiting to be removed from



with the 24 XV.,” The very afternoon of th

-

thz poles. Hr. Bosweli traced the lines the day folicwing the accident za¢ fouusd

“that the old 6% KV line had some how sagged to the wxtcur that it came inte conszet

(1]

accident Hr. Miller had his men do

remzaial work and corrected the fuuit he foumd. For thic reacon the accouuc siven

by bhr. ndller is praferrcd o thot given by Mr. Bosweli.

If Wr. Hiiler's vercion is the truth, and I czin find no reasce for oot

accopling 1€, how did rhe fine slip from the clawmp? Wy <vidsace was before thu
court that there was any wafsel in the clamp or 2oy &efecc ip the Idpe that cans-d

‘vn: leg® to slip. Thaveo wridamce fyom whiceh 1t could even be inferred thot

r‘\
£
th
ks
6
0

—

civther the ¢ilamp or the line weo dofective. Inm Faet th: svidence wago they afcer

tne first defendent had findched its work the liowsc were Tsutb, they had tznsion

xn them incicating that thly wire securely clamped., It appadrs that ne formal
inspeetion was dome aftsr the zccidont to determins whet ceused the line to slip.

£

or boti of them; the ceof of stranger or the .ot

wes it o larent defeci din

i
(o]
£

God area where ta: lines came imte coataet iz met whare che public hed

887 acCess. I Wus SUoOWLLIT Crogss—eountry over pastur: lands. Hotwithstondiog
the semsies Public Servics had o dury o so monitor its  1lines thet it cowld toke
zorractive mesures wWheniver it become neccessary. It iz well recognised thaz
crmmcice Puplic Service limes from time to time eom: 1n.s contact with ecch other
for known and Someiime: uakncwn T=asongS. It As oot unifcroseeable.

After the work p the live had been compieztod by the first defandenr, che

cwecne defendant had iospocted znd approved it 2g hovang been done to its sztisface

defendant
ticn. Alcthough the firstfwsuld be licble as zn indepurdint comtracior for work
cone aogligentiy by 3is own workmen, it would beo entizled fo feel relisved of

srdponsibility ofter tac iub was inspected mwnd pessxd by

o
)

SEmpetent engineer.

Lo the judgment of Atkinsen J. in Buckmor v. Ashby oad doruer, Limited {1940)

ok page 334,

Under Hzgulaticus € of the Blectrical Lignting Regulatioms

be permicird o vemsin
L

¥ obe used fur the Su?P}.‘T
intent within cix months

There was no ovidcpee thot these linss wers owor €0 be put in use agein eud

cairefore the Jamaica Pubiic Service was under o Stastutory Duly to remove Chsm
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within a reasonable time after they were taken out of service. These were the
very lines the plaintiff was removing when he received his injuries.

Under the conditioms of the comtract page B 7. para. 13,

r

“the contracior is required to complete and maintain
the works in strict accordance with the coptract to
the satisfaetion of the engineer...”

From the evidence the relationship between the first defendant’s supervisor
and the second defendant’s engineer seemed tc have been very geod. There is ac
<vidence ¢f complaint by the cngineer about the ezscution of the contract by the
coutractor. The contractor seemed to have been performing within the temms of
his contract. There was ac adverse report abcut his job. When Mr. Boswell made
his official report of the accident he admitted that he mever indicated im his
report that the first defendant was to be blamed for the accident. In fack; he
never indicated who was tc be blamed. It is only since the defence was amended

,,,,,,,, : during this trial that the sacond defendant is claiwing that the accident was
thrcugh the negligemce cf either the plaintiff or the first defemdant. This is
aiter both the plaintiff and the first defendant hail closed their cases. When
the defence to the claim was filed all the second defendant did was to deny Lhe
cliegations of megligence om its part. It never poiuted its finger at anyonsg
then. How come it is only at this late stage that it is casting blame. Is this
an after—-thought ?

It was a term of the contract under the heading of specification, page F 1

paragraph 1.07, that "the contractor is free to arrange the order of the work

V]

£

%

benefit from the most scomcmical development of plamt, equipment and labour

i

and to suit the method of cimstruction adopted.”

Under paragraph 1.08, (&) the precject, shall be under the charse and con#?ol
of the contractor amd "during such period of control by the contractor zll risks
iz connection with the construction of the project and the materials to be used
therein should be bourne by the contractor.”

I accept the evidence of Mr. Miller that among his job for that. day was
the cutting out of cold asbzudoned 69 KV transmission wires withim the area given
for the outage. In keeping with the procedures adopted in the past, when he was

given the permit to work £orm, this was a certificatice by the Jamaica Public Service
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engineer that it-was safe o work in the area covered by the permit,
Acting on this, he instructed the plaintiff to remove the abandoned wires
as he had no reason to belicves that they had been emcrgised from any source ouk-

side of the area of outage. In so far as the activities by the plaintiff and the

P

irst defendant within the ocutage arez om that day are comcerned, there is po
avidence to support the allegation of the second defendast that it was through the
negligence of either of them which cause or contributed to the injuries. loss and
demages to the plaintiff.

What then was the proximate cause of the accident? It surely is not as the
sceeond defendant claims. It is clear om tﬁe totality of the evidence, and I so
find, that this accident occurred in the mapner stated bj Hr. Miller in his
avilence that the abandoned $3 KV wire had slipped from its clamp and had come into
cootact with the live 24 XV underbuild. Unknown tc any of the parties this
energised the abandoned 69 KV wires as far as to the area of the outage. In bis
attempt to retire this abandomnec wire the plaintiff received his injuries.

In the absence of cvidence that either the clamp or the wires had any defect,
the court is entitled to infer that they were reasonably satisfactory for the
purpose for which they wers menufactured. There was 2lst absence of evidence of
any natural disaster at the relevant time which could possibly bave caused the
wire to slip. The first defendant admitted that its workmen had retired a porticu
«f the wire in the area scme 5 to 6 weeks before and had securely clamped the
remaining portion with a view to returming at a later date to remove same. The
Jamzica Public Serxvice engimeer was present and expressed satisfaction with the
jcb done. From all appearances the work was properly done. but was it?

In Buckncr v. Ashby & Hormer, Limited (supra) at p. 335 Lord Goddard in the

Court of Appeal had this to say:i—

"In the case of a danger comcealed from the occupiers of
premises and their licenses, for instanmee. in the case
of a balecony which a builder has been employed to repair,
the fact that the work had bheen approwed would not
exonerate the comtractor if it were badly done, the
defect not being apparent.™

Applying the above tc the instant case, the fact that the Jamaica Publie
Service Engineer passed the job dome by the first defencant as satisfactory would

not exonerate the firsi defendant if it were badly dome. The inescapable finding
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therefore is that the first defendant was negligent in clamping the wires, which
subsequently slipped from the clamp and came into contact with the live underbuild
and became energised. It may well be said that the inspection dome by the Jamzica
Public Service Engineer was very perfunmctory hence the failure to discover thar
tae wire had not been securely clamped.

In the event, on the totzlity of the evidence I find that the injuries to ]
the plaintiff were causwzd by the negligence of the first and second defendants.

I am not satisfied that the claim for breach of statutory duty has been
substantiated.

Bow should 1isbility be apportiocned? “Jamzaica Public Service is the sole /
undertaker having absolut: control of o dangerous utility and concomitant with
that a very high duty of care to anyone who would be likely to suffer injury
resulting from breach of such duty of care™ per Wright J.A. in SCCA Nos. 45 and

46/85 ~ Jp8 Co. Ltd v. Wiaston Barr & Orhers.

Bearing in mind the requirement to be just and eguitable, "I think that =
true test for apportionment mmust take into account the very high degree of care
imposed on a2 public utility company. The factor to be taken intc account is what
was done towards carrying ocut their duty" - per Downer J.A. in the same case.
Snuuld proportions be assessed by reference to the extent to which the negligeunt
scics of the parties caused the damage, or should the division depend on the
relative blameworthiness of the parties?

The conclusion to be drawm from the decided cases is that the degree of
blameworthiness is the mest importamt factor.

As already imdicated the cause of the wire slipped from the clamp was due
t> nmegligent workmanship by the first defendant. This defendant should therefore
bear the wajor responsibility. However, having regard to the very high duty of
cire placed on the second defendant I am of the view that it would be just and

eguitable for both defendants to share the blame eguaily.

Damages

Admittecly, the plaintiff suffered severe injuries - He has lost his right

bzl and has hypopigmented areas om his body caused by electrical burns.
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Under the heading of special damages the foilowing were agreed om:-~

Loss nf Clothes (pants. merimo & shirt) $ 130.G9
Cost of photograph § 200.00

There was evidence from the plaintiff in support sf the
following claims

Loss of earning from 30/4/85 -~ 14/5/92 - 314 weeks @

$200.00 per week 562 ,800.00

smount for attemdant (In Jamaica) fom. 4th February, 1986

to l4th November, 1987 90 weeks @ $10G.00 per week. $ 9,000.G0
$72,130.00

smount for attendant (abroad) from 14/11/87 to

14/5/92 234 weeks @ US $200.00 per week Us $46,800.00

Cest of prosthesis Us $ 3,000.00

Claims for costs of medical certificates and costs of surgery were not
pursued.

In view of the evidence of the plaintiff that his halper in the United States
SE America also did houschcld work for three other adults inm the house, the sum
claimed is being reduced by 50% as she was not working exclusively with the
plaintiff. Therefore this clzim is being assessed at US $23,400.00. The other
cleims are awarded as claiwmed,

No award is beipg made for future helper to the plaintiff as after all this
icng period of time the plainciff ought to be reasonably ohle to take care of
himself.

With regard to future loss of earnings, ther: was cvidence that the plaintiff
made efforts to secure employment but with little success. He is z resident of
the United States of America znd been in discussions with an nrganization which
iooks about the retraining of handicapped persoms. There is some prospect of Leing
retrained and employed sometrime in the future. He was unemployed up to when he
testified.

He is mot totally incapacitated. At least he would be a foremap now sarning
between $2000 § $2500 per week on the evidence of Mr. Miller. The plaintiff was
35 years cf age when he testified. I think 2 multipliier cf 10 would be approprizte
with 2n average weekly salury of $2,250. The anpual income would therefore be
§$2.250 X 52 = $117,000. Deduct 314,500 beiny amount free from tax. Amcunt

£o be taxed = $102,500. Deduct } of this amount for tax - $102,500 -~ $25,625
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= $76,875.00 plus non—-taxzsble sum of $14.500 making $91,375 X 10 = §$913.750.
This should be scaled down by 30% for contingencies thereby producing §639,685.00.
The practise of further discounting for immediacy of payment is well recognised.

i would make the final figure $550,000.00.

Pain & Suifexring and Loss of Amenities

Under this heading the court looked at severzl cases referred to im Hys.
Khan®s book on personal injury awards.

In Carlton Smith v. Jasper James . 2t page 95 -~ Wol. 3., san award of

$150,000 was made omn the 25th of Qctober, 1988, for injuries arising out of 2
motor vehicle accident wherecin the plaintiff lost his right upper arm resulting
________ ina 60Z loss of the whole man. Due to inflation this zmcunt would be eguivalent
to $753,625.93 usiog the April, 1993, Consumers Prices Index of 435.5. The
ylaintiff suffered burns tc other parts of his body snd this should be provided
for in the assessment. Accordingly, the award under this heading is for the sunm
£ £800,000.00.
To summarise, there should be judgment for the plointiff against the first
and seccond defendants equally with damages assessed as follows:-
Specizal Damages JA $7Z2.130.0C
US $26,400.0C
This will bear interest € 3%Z per amnmum from the Z3rd of October, 1985 to Jdate of

judgment.
General Demapes — Future Loss of earning $530,000.

Pain and suffering & loss of Amenities ———— $800,000 with interest om this
sum @ 3% per annum from the date of the service of the writ to the date of judiment.
Costs to the plaintiff to be taxed if mct agreed
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